
 
 

Neuadd y Sir 
Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 
NP15 1GA 
 
 

County Hall 
Rhadyr 

Usk 
NP15 1GA 

 
Tuesday, 13 October 2015 

 

Notice of meeting / Hysbysiad o gyfarfod: 
 

Special Meeting 
Children and Young People Select Committee 

 

Wednesday, 21st October, 2015 at 2.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA 

 

AGENDA 
 

Item No Item Pages 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

3.   Draft Budget Proposals 2016/17 for consultation - To scrutinise the 
budget savings proposals for 2016/17 

 

1 - 90 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Chief Executive / Prif Weithredwr 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
County Councillors: P. Jones 

P. Farley 
L. Guppy 
R. Harris 
M. Hickman 
S. Howarth 
D. Jones 
M. Powell 
M Fowler (Parent Governor Representative) 
C Robertshaw (Parent Governor Represenative) 
Dr S James (Church in Wales Representative) 
K Plow (Association of School Governors) 

  
 Added Members 

Members voting on Education Issues Only 
  
  
 Added Members 

Non Voting 
Vacancy (NAHT) 
Vacancy (ASCL) 
Vacancy (NUT) 
Vacancy (Free Church Federal Council) 
Vacancy (NASUWT) 
 

 
Public Information 

 
Access to paper copies of agendas and reports 
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public 
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please 
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard 
copy of this agenda.  
 
Watch this meeting online 
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC. 
 
Welsh Language 
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or 
English.  We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your 
needs. 

 

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


 

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council 
 
Sustainable and Resilient Communities 
 
Outcomes we are working towards 
 
Nobody Is Left Behind  

 Older people are able to live their good life  

 People have access to appropriate and affordable housing  

 People have good access and mobility  

 
People Are Confident, Capable and Involved  

 People’s lives are not affected by alcohol and drug misuse  

 Families are supported  

 People feel safe  

 
Our County Thrives  

 Business and enterprise 

 People have access to practical and flexible learning  

 People protect and enhance the environment 

 
Our priorities 
 

 Schools 

 Protection of vulnerable people 

 Supporting Business and Job Creation 

 Maintaining locally accessible services 

 
Our Values 
 

 Openness: we aspire to be open and honest to develop trusting relationships. 

 Fairness: we aspire to provide fair choice, opportunities and experiences and become an 

organisation built on mutual respect. 

 Flexibility: we aspire to be flexible in our thinking and action to become an effective and 

efficient organisation. 

 Teamwork: we aspire to work together to share our successes and failures by building on 

our strengths and supporting one another to achieve our goals. 



 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 
Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chryf 

 
Canlyniadau y gweithiwn i'w cyflawni 
 
Neb yn cael ei adael ar ôl 
 

 Gall pobl hŷn fyw bywyd da 

 Pobl â mynediad i dai addas a fforddiadwy 

 Pobl â mynediad a symudedd da 

 
Pobl yn hyderus, galluog ac yn cymryd rhan 
 

 Camddefnyddio alcohol a chyffuriau ddim yn effeithio ar fywydau pobl 

 Teuluoedd yn cael eu cefnogi 

 Pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel 

 
Ein sir yn ffynnu 
 

 Busnes a menter 

 Pobl â mynediad i ddysgu ymarferol a hyblyg 

 Pobl yn diogelu ac yn cyfoethogi'r amgylchedd 

 
Ein blaenoriaethau 
 

 Ysgolion 

 Diogelu pobl agored i niwed 

 Cefnogi busnes a chreu swyddi 

 Cynnal gwasanaethau sy’n hygyrch yn lleol 

 
Ein gwerthoedd 
 

 Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus 

 Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a 
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall. 

 Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad 
effeithlon ac effeithiol. 

 Gwaith tîm: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar 
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE: 
 

1.1 To provide detailed draft proposals on the budget savings required to meet the gap 
between available resources and need to spend in 2016/17, for consultation purposes. 
 

1.2 To consider the 2016/17 budget within the context of the 4 year Medium Term Financial 
Plan 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That Select committee scrutinises the budget savings proposals for 2016/17 released for 

consultation purposes and provide their response by the 30th November 2015 
 
3. KEY ISSUES: 

 
Background 
 

3.1 In January 2015, Cabinet approved a balanced budget for 2015/16 and acknowledged an 

indicative MTFP position which forecast the gap in resources over the remaining three 

year period as £10 million.  Each year the MTFP model is rolled forward to present a 4 

year position and this produced a gap of £13 million, based on original assumptions 

contained in the model. 

  

3.2 Cabinet received a further report on the MTFP in June, agreed some revised 

assumptions and assessed the level of pressures that needed to be considered.  Work 

has continued over the summer to refine the modelling assumptions and outline the 

income generation or savings proposals that will need to be considered.  

 

 

 

 

3.3 Funding Assumptions 

 Welsh Government funding – a reduction of 4.3% has been assumed in the absence of 

any further updates.  It is expected that the provisional settlement normally expected in 

SUBJECT:  DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2016/17 FOR CONSULTATION 

MEETING:  Children and Young People 

DATE:  21st October 2015 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



October will be delayed until December 2015/January 2016, in order for the impact of the 

Spending Review (Nov 2015) on the Welsh Budget to be worked through.  

 Council Tax increases – this has been modelled on 4.95% across the 4 years 

 Fees and Charges – 2.5% increase has been assumed, however there is a proposal to 

consider higher increases. 

3.4 Expenditure assumptions 

 Pay award – 1% increase (except schools) 

 Vacancy factor for staff turnover – 2% reduction (except schools) 

 Non- pay inflation – 0% 

 Cash flat line for schools 

3.5 Pressures 

In addition to this, the pressures going forward have been reviewed and the changes to 

the pressures going into the model since the last report are: 

1. Demographic pressure in social care – has been taken out as it will be managed 
through the change in practice work that is already underway 
 

2. The impact of the National living wage on social care contracts for residential care 
and domicillary care 

3. Waste – increase in recycling costs, specific WG grant reduction, growth in waste 
tonnages 

4. Passenger transport unit – realignment of income budget, SEN transport costs, 
transport for welsh medium at Duffryn 

5. Redundancy provision will be built into the base budget from 2017/18 onwards, 
with 2016/17 costs being met from reserves 

6. National Living wage impact for MCC staff in the later years of the MTFP  

7. Treasury impact of increased capital financing requirement, potentially to be offset 
by a savings from a change in the Authority’s Treasury Strategy currently being 
worked on.  

3.6 A summary table of pressures is provided in Appendix 1 and further detailed information 

on some of these pressures is provided in the Pressure mandates in Appendix 2.  It is 

noticeable that there are a limited number of pressures identified for years 2 to 4 of the 

MTFP, however it is common for them to be recognised closer to the year in question 

and this needs to be borne in mind when considering the remaining gap in the MTFP.     

 

3.7 In addition, previously agreed savings that have not been achieved in 2014/15 and 

2015/16 (so far) have not been recognised as pressures in the model as Directorates are 

in the process of identifying replacement savings during the course of this year.  Whilst 

Page 2



there is confidence that this can be achieved it does present a risk that will need to be 

managed. 

3.8 The effect of the roll forward of the model,  revised assumptions and pressures revisions 

above is to create a revised gap of £11 million over the period of the plan.  The 

previously agreed MTFP contained savings targets of £844k which had mandates to 

explain how the savings were going to be found.  These savings are therefore not being 

repeated here for approval.    

MTFP Strategy 

3.9 After several years of reducing budgets (over £22 million in last 5 years) the means of 

achieving further savings becomes increaslingly more challenging. The work streams 

and lead in times require sustained leadership and management capacity to ensure that 

the proposals can be worked up and the changes made to ensure required outcomes 

and savings are delivered. In the light of these circumstances, the approach adopted has 

been to work up next years proposals, whilst taking into account the medium term 

position.  Work is being undertaken on the savings targets further out in the MTFP  and 

these will be the subject of a future report.  However much more work is necessary in 

order to consider the remaining 3 years of the MTFP and what the future shape of the 

Authority needs to look like in the light of the emerging financial position. 

3.10 This approach has been key to enabling a focus on the Council’s Single Integrated Plan 

with its vision of sustainable and relilient communities and 3 themes of the County’s 

Single Integrated Plan of; Nobody is left behind, People are capable, confident and 

involved, Our County thrives and their associated outcomes.  This has also allowed the 

core priorities, as identified within the Administration’s Mid Term Report and Continuance 

Agreement 2015-17, to be maintained, namely:  

 direct spending in schools,  

 services to vulnerable children and adults and 

 activities that support the creation of jobs and wealth in the local economy, 

 maintaining locally accessible services 

3.11 The budget proposals contained within this report have sought to ensure these key 

outcomes and priorities can be continued to be pursued as far as possible within a 

restricting resource base.  This does not, however, mean that these areas will not 

contribute to meeting the financial challenges.  The aim is to make sure everything is 

efficient so that as broad a range of service offer as possible can be maintained. Chief 

Officers in considering the proposals and strategy above have been mindful of the whole 

authority risk assessment.  

 

3.12 The following table demonstrates the links at a summary level that have been made with 

the 4 priorities, Single Integrated Plan and the strategic risks: 

 

Proposal Link to Priority Areas / Link to Whole Authority 

Page 3



Single Integrated Plan 
 

Risk assessment 

Schools budgets have 
been protected at 
2015/16 levels,  
 

Direct Spending in schools is 
maintained  
People are Capable, confident 
and Involved 
Our County Thrives 
 

Budget proposals are 
mindful of the risk around 
children not achieving their 
full potential 

Social care budgets will 
see additional resources 
going into the budget for 
Children’s social services 
 

Services to protect vulnerable 
people 
Nobody is left behind 
 

These proposals seeks to 
address the risks around 
more people becoming 
vulnerable and in need and 
the needs of children with 
additional learning needs 
not being met 

 The service 
transformation projects in 
Adults social care and 
Children’s services for 
special needs, aims to 
ensure that the needs of 
the vulnerable are still 
being met albeit in a 
different way 

Services to protect vulnerable 
people 
Nobody is left behind 

Work has started on 
reshaping the leisure,  
tourism, culture, outdoor 
education and Youth 
service offer with a view 
to establishing an 
alternative service 
delivery model. 

Activities that support the 
creation of jobs and wealth in 
the local economy and 
maintain locally accessible 
services 
 

 

The drive for service 
efficiencies savings has 
continued  across all 
service areas in order to 
avoid more stringent cuts 
to frontline services for 
example looking at how 
we rationalise and use 
our properties in the light 
of the Asset 
Management Plan, ICT 
in the light of iCounty 
strategy and vehicles 
more efficiently 
 

Further reviews of 
management and support 
structures and consolidation of 
office accommodation, 
contributes to the aims of 
creating a sustainable and 
resilient communities. 

Addresses risks around the 
ability to sustain our 
priorities within the current 
financial climate 

The need to think 
differently what income 
can be generated has 
been a clear imperative  
in working up the 
proposals. Clear 
examples are the income 
opportunities in  and 

Being able to generate further 
income streams responds to 
the consultation responses in 
previous years regarding a 
preference for this compared 
to services cuts and 
contributes to the aims of 
creating a sustainable and 

Page 4



Highways, Planning and 
other discretionary 
charges 
 

resilient communities. 

 

3.13 The process adopted of capturing ideas through detailed mandates and business cases 

has sought to improve and formalise the links between individual budget proposals, the 

key priorities of the authority, key performance indicators and the strategic risks from the 

whole authority risk assessment.   

Savings Targets 
 

3.14 It is recognised that so far, more emphasis has been put on the 2016/17 proposals and 
figures in order to set the budget and close the gap for next year.  The individual 
proposals are outlined in Appendix 4 and have been through an initial Future 
Generations challenge, the results of which are linked to each proposal. The main 
headlines are: 

 Establishing an alternative service delivery model for Tourism, Leisure, culture, 
outdoor education and youth services in the form of a wholly owned ‘not for profit 
trust model’ 

 Working with Town and Community to sustain locally accessible services together, 
if this is not possible, reductions in services will need to be reviewed. 

 Managing the increasing demand for social care by increasing the capacity for 
people to sustain independent lives within their own communities  

 Enabling children with additional learning needs to have those needs met as far as 
possible within Monmouthshire schools 

 Reducing spend on highways maintenance, grounds maintenance and property 
services 

 Transferring some of our buildings to community groups and selling others where 
we can consolidate services in reduced accommodation 

 Increasing discretionary fees and charges by 10% rather than 2.5% assumed in 
the MTFP model, following feedback from previous public consultation events 

3.15 It is expected that Welsh Government will continue to seek protection for education 
budgets in the future although there have been no announcements on the specific details 
of this.  The authority more than met its target in this respect in previous years, and for 
2016/17 is protecting funding at cash flatline. 

3.16 Work is continuing on the need to address the longer term issue of a reducing resource 
base.  It is expected that further mandates and business cases outlining the detail to 
address the savings targets in the latter years of the MTFP will continue to be worked up 
and submitted for scrutiny through select committees.  This will ensure that the work 
needed to balance the MTFP is undertaken now in order to deliver savings in the later 
years of the plan.   This longer term plan will need to link closely with the work on the 
corporate Improvement Plan, so that the new shape of the Authority and its performance 
expectations are matched with the expected resource base for delivering services. 

Impact of Capital MTFP  

3.17 Work is continuing on the Capital MTFP and this will be considered by Cabinet at the 
next meeting.  For the purposes of establishing the revenue impact of any changes to the 

Page 5



capital MTFP it has been assumed at this stage that any additional schemes which are 
established as priorities will displace schemes or budget allocations already in the capital 
programme rather than add any additional pressure which would require financing and 
therefore potentially impact on the revenue budget. 

Council Tax 

3.18 The Council Tax increase in the budget has been assumed as 4.95% per annum across 
the MTFP as a planning assumption..  The Council tax base will be formally set by 
Cabinet in December.  This will include an assessment of collection rates and growth in 
properties but early indications are that the budget could be increased. In addition, the  
demand for Council Tax Reduction Scheme payments has been assessed as reducing 
next year based on the forecasts being projected forward from the current year activity. 
Taken together £400,000 of additional Council Tax has been used in the calculations so 
far and this will be revisited when more detailed assessments are made.  

Summary position 

3.19 In summary, the 2016/17 budget gap is now £1.738m,  if all the savings proposals 

contained in the Appendix 4 are approved.   

  

3.20 However, this still leaves a gap of £6.5 million to be found over the whole of the 4 year 

period.   

 

Reserves strategy 

3.21 Earmarked reserve usage over the MTFP is projected to decrease the balance on 

earmarked reserves from £9 million at the start of 2015/16 to £6.2 million at the end of 

2019/20.  Taking into account that some of these reserves are specific, for example 

relating to joint arrangements or to fund capital projects, this brings the usable balance 

down to £5 million.   

3.22 Whilst every effort will be made to avoid redundancy costs and the Protection of 

Employment policy is used to ensure redundancy is minimised, it is expected there may 

be some that are inevitable and reserve cover may be required for this, possibly in the 

region of £500,000 per year.  Over the MTFP this could require £2 million reserve 

funding cover, if services are unable to fund the payments from their budgets. The MTFP 

model now includes a fund for redundancy costs in the base budget from 2017/18. 

Next Steps 

3.23 The information contained in this report constitutes the budget proposals that are now 

made available for formal consultation. Cabinet are interested in consultation views on 

 2016/17

Summary Draft MTFP £000s

Gap 6,319            

MTFP savings agreed 844               

Savings with mandates 3,332            

Council Tax base 400               

New Gap 1,743            

Page 6



the proposals and how the remaining gap may be closed.  This is the opportunity for 

Members, the public and community groups to consider the budget proposals and make 

comments on them.   Cabinet will not however, be prepared to recommend anything to 

Council  that has not been subject to a Future Generations  and EQIA and therefore a 

deadline to receive alternative proposals has been set as 30th November 2015.  

3.24 Public engagement sessions (to include the formal requirement to consult businesses) 

and Select Committee Scrutiny of Budget proposals, will take place over the course of 

October and November.  The scrutiny of and consultation on the budget proposals are 

key  areas of this part of the budget process.  The following dates have been set of the 

Select committees and work is continuing on providing dates for public consultation in the 

same timescales: 

20th Oct 2pm Adults 
21st Oct 2015  10am CYP 
22nd Oct 2015  10am Strong Communities  

4th Nov 2015 10am Economy and Development 

3.25 The aim this year has been to enable more time to consider the responses to the 

consultation on the budget proposals.  To that end it is proposed that the consultation  

will end on the 30th November 2015 to enable Council to consider the responses and 

approve final budget proposals in January 2016 if possible.  There may need to be some 

flexibility around this date given the expected late notifcations of funding to be received 

from Welsh Government.  Formal Council Tax setting will still take place at full Council on 

26th February 2015 once the Police precept and all the Community Council precepts 

have been notified. 

4 REASONS: 

 

4.1 To agree budget proposals for 2016/17  for consultation purposes 

 

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: 

 

As identified in the report and appendices 

6. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS: 

The future generation and equality impacts of each individual saving proposal have been 
initially identified in the assessment and are linked to the saving proposal document.  No 
significant negative impact has been identified.  Further consultation requirements have 
been identified and are on going. Further assessment of the total impact of the all the 
proposals will be undertaken for the final budget report.  

 
The actual equality impacts from the final budget report’s recommendations will be 
reviewed and  monitored during and after implementation.  

 

7. CONSULTEES: 
 
SLT 
Cabinet 

Page 7



Head of Legal Services 
Head of Strategic Personnel 

 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

 

 Appendix 1:  Summary table of Pressures 

 Appendix 2:  Detail of individual pressures 

Appendix 3: Summary list of budget savings  

Appendix 4: Individual proposals – detailed mandates or business cases with attached 

Future Generation assessments, numbered  between B1 and B23  

               

9. AUTHOR:  
Joy Robson 
Head of Finance 

 

10. CONTACT DETAILS: 

 

 Tel: 01633 644270 

 E-mail: joyrobson@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Page 8



Appendix 1 - Summary table of Pressures

APPENDIX 1
Revised Revised  Revised 

Summary table of pressures 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19  2019/20 Total

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000

 

 - demographics -            -            -            -           Reduce to zero, being managed through practice change

 - corrected pension auto enrolment 913 92 1,005       

Increase in employers national insurance 968 968          Excluding schools

Cost of Local development plan 125 125          Reserve funded

Childrens social serivces 483 483          

SCH Contract inflation care fees - residential 784  784          revised pressures based on living wage rather than min wage

SCH Contract inflation care fees - domicillary care 347 347          revised pressures based on living wage rather than min wage

Waste 1,150 311 1,461       

PTU 355 30 47 72 504          

Provision for redundancy 0 250 250 500          Fund by reserves in 2016/17

Living Wage 0 0 58 112 170          
Treasury (to be reviewed) 100 100          Treasury policy being worked on
Total Pressures 4,312        1,504        447           184           6,447       

P
age 9



Appendix 1 - Summary table of Pressures

revised pressures based on living wage rather than min wage

revised pressures based on living wage rather than min wage

P
age 10



Number Title Description Value
Mandate 

Owner

B1

Assess the feasibility to 

establish a Not for Profit 

Service Delivery Model  

(Tourism Leisure & Culture)

The proposal seeks to undetake a service 

realignment and rationalisation exercise with 

the Toursim, Leisure, Culture, Outdoor 

Education and Youth Service with a view to 

establishing an alternative service delivery 

model in the form of a wholly owned 'not for 

profit trust model'.   

      354,000 Ian Saunders

B2
Rationalise business support 

teams.

Rationalisation and integrate where possible 

admin/ business suport teams.         50,000 Tracey Harry

B3
Training Service 

Consolidation

The proposal is to create one training service 

by bringing together Corporate Training 

(Talent Lab), Leisure Training (MonAcademy), 

Community Learning, Raglan Training Centre 

and Youth Service Training.  

        50,000 Peter Davies

B4

SRS (Shared Resources 

Service) Business 

Development Options

To further explore cloud based solutions in 

order to deliver a secure platform that will 

add real value to the existing PSBA (Public 

Sector Broadband Aggregation) network.

      100,000 Peter Davies

B5 Community Asset Transfer.

Potential CAT schemes at Melville theatre, 

and Drill Hall predicated on reducing our 

liabilities.

        60,000 
Ben 

Winstanley

B6
Community Infrastructure 

Levy 

Better use of Community Infrastructure Levy 

(CIL) and S106 Developer Planning 

Contributions to reduce MCC infrastructure 

capital and revenue costs on more strategic 

projects.

        50,000 Mark Hand

B7 Legal Services Review

Potential for income generation via charging 

for legal services provided to other 

organisations.

        25,000 
Robert 

Tranter

B8

Promoting responsible 

business waste 

management

The restriction of the commercial disposal of 

waste at Civic Amenties sites         80,000 Rachel Jowitt

B9
Planning Service – Income 

Generation

Additional planning fee income generation. 
40,000       Mark Hand

B10
Extension of shared lodgings 

housing scheme

This mandate proposal, is to continue 

developing and expanding the existing House-

share scheme. 

50,000       Ian Bakewell

B11
Leadership Team 

Restructure

Evolution of structures and re-alignment of 

key leadership posts to create more blend 

and synergies.

225,000     
Paul 

Matthews

2016/17 Budget Mandate Ideas

Page 11



B12

Second phase review of 

grants/ subsidies to third 

sector discretionary bodies

Review of grants to 3rd sector bodies 

75,000       Will McLean

B13
Highways infrastructure - 

income Generation  

Revenue generation through increased 

advertising and car parking revenue from 

additional parking spaces.  (subject to new 

car park order and capital investment).

150,000     
Roger 

Hoggins

B14
Grounds maintenance -

Funding Review.

Introduction of wild flower planting rather 

than annual bedding, withdrawal of 

Chepstow sexton, Green fingers to take on 

Linda Vista maintenance.

75,000       
Roger 

Hoggins

B15
Highways Maintenance - 

Review

Reduction in County Highways Operations 

budget by reduction in operatives (3), 

vehicles and materials.

200,000     
Roger 

Hoggins

B16
Flexible employment 

options.

Offers staff the opportunity to reduce hours, 

work term time, extend unpaid leave and 

purchase additional annual leave
50,000       Peter Davies

B17 Business rate evaluation.

This is a one off saving resulting from 

backdated succesful business rate appeals on 

council properties

140,000     
Ruth 

Donovan

B18 Strategic Property Review
Consolidation of office accommodation and 

broader review of Council assets
      160,000 

Ben 

Winstanley

B19
Property Services & Facilities 

Management Review

This is made up of 5 elements :- *Office 

Services, Resources, facilities restructure. 

*Reduction in supplies & services 

budgets.*Reduction of corporate building 

maintenance budget. *Reduction on 

Transport costs for catering. *Introduction of 

purchasing cards for catering, cleaning & 

Maintenance. 

      100,000 Rob O'Dwyer

B20

Implementation of phase 3 

of Additional Learning needs 

strategy

Continuation of the strategy to provide 

support in mainstream settings with 

potential impact on Deri View unit

      200,000 
Shaorn 

Randell-Smith

B21
Town and community 

councils

Contribution to specific services which would 

otherwise be cut such as community hubs, 

museums, street sweeping
      500,000 Kelly/Roger

B22
Collaboration and realigning 

structures in operations.

Quick wins on collaboration for 2016/17, 

sharing posts       100,000 
Roger 

Hoggins

Discretionary Fees and 

charges

Increasing fees and charges budgets by 10% 

rather than 2.5% included in MTFP model, so 

an extra 7.5%.  Consideration needs to be 

given to  increasing customers and/or 

increasing charges

      498,000 

All 

discretionaly 

fee areas

Total 3,332,000  B = 2016/17 Mandate ideas

Page 12



  Page 1 of 11 
 
     

Business Change Mandate (Including Budget Mandates) Proposal Number:   B1 
Title: Assess the feasibility to establish a Not for Profit Service Delivery Model  
 
All information requested must be completed on the proposed mandate to enable the Cabinet to decide whether to proceed with the 
proposal.  
 

Mandate Completed by  Cath Fallon, Ian Saunders 

Date  14th September 2015 

 

How much savings will it generate and over what period?  

£254k 2016/2017 – initial savings due to 80% reduction on NNDR. 
£100k 2016/2017 – initial savings including income generation, service realignment and rationalisation 
 
 

Directorate & Service Area responsible  

Enterprise – Tourism, Leisure and Culture  
 

Mandate lead(s) 

Ian Saunders/Cath Fallon 
 

 
 
 

Final mandate approved by Cabinet 
 

Date:  

 
  

P
age 13



  Page 2 of 11 
 
     

 

1. Vision and Outcomes of the Mandate  
Give a business context for the mandate.  This must pick up on the vision and what the new / improved / reduced service will look like in the future 
including the anticipated experience of users.  It must also consider any impact on the Council’s key priorities and strategic outcomes. Similarly does 
it impact on service performance within the immediate service area or any impact on other services provided by the authority / any other providers.  In 
doing so, the mandate must be tested against the equality impact assessment and sustainable development impact assessment and must consider 
impact in relation to the new Future Generations Bill.   
 

What is the issue that the proposal is seeking to address? 

 
A recent addition to Monmouthshire County Council’s priorities is the desire to maintain locally accessible services aligning with our 
wider vision of creating sustainable and resilient communities.  However with the current backdrop of austerity measures, there is a 
risk to the continued delivery of non-discretionary local services.  This risk is particularly pertinent in the Tourism, Leisure and 
Culture and Youth Service areas where local services are operating in an environment where limited funding is available yet the 
community still wish to see the delivery of these local services maintained.  
 

What evidence have you got that this needs to be addressed? 

 
Historic operating data and a recent service area review has identified a need to rationalise the current working model and improve 
practices within the Tourism, Leisure and Culture Service area.  The wider austerity backdrop also demonstrates that minor tweaking 
of services will not solve the significant budget deficit issue.  There is therefore a need to look at an alternative service delivery 
model that will not only meet the Council’s priority of maintaining  locally accessible services but will also meet the needs of the 
community whilst  supporting the ethos of inclusive public sector service delivery.   
 

How will this proposal address this issue 

 
This proposal seeks to undertake a service realignment and rationalisation exercise with the Tourism, Leisure, Culture, Outdoor 
Education and Youth Service with a view to establishing an alternative service delivery model in the form of a wholly owned Not for 
Profit Trust Model.  Operating as a start up entity the features of the Model are as follows: 
 

 A spin out vehicle for delivering, growing and sustaining locally accessible services; 

 Income generation service areas to be used to cross subsidise less profitable services to ensure locally accessible services 
are maintained; 

 Flexibility for the Council to address any non-performance or failure to deliver services at a local level through its sole 
ownership and pre-determined annual delivery plans; 

P
age 14



  Page 3 of 11 
 
     

 Compliance with EU procurement legislation and an ability to deliver services on behalf of the Council by making use of the 
TECKAL exemption and S77 regulation; 

 Capital assets transfer and subsequent asset lock to enable scope to leverage in third party finance to facilitate the delivery of 
services; 

 Tax efficiency via its charitable status i.e. NNDR relief, VAT relief, some exemptions on corporation tax, capability of achieving 
gift aid donations; and 

 TUPE of staff into the Model. 
 
In addition a trading company will be established to monetise and commercialise the Trust model enabling the opportunity to 
maximise profit potential in areas such as catering, retail, venue hire and events management – potential income/profit that the 
Council is currently losing to private sector operators.  The trading arm would operate under a separate staffing arrangement to 
ensure that services can be delivered at private sector labour market rates and condition to maximise profit potential. 
 

What will it look like when you have implemented the proposal 

 
The model requires economies of scale to be successful therefore implementation of the proposal will take place over several years.  
In 2016/2017 capital assets will be transferred into the model to enable the Council to benefit from NNDR Business Rate savings of £x.  
During 2015/16 an assessment of the service area reviews will be undertaken along with a cost benefit analysis to identify areas of 
duplication, inefficiencies and budget savings to ensure that any services transferred into the model will be operating at maximum 
efficiency.   
 

Expected positive impacts 

 
This approach offers better value for money and service delivery to the Council and Monmouthshire communities and visitors as the 
Model will: 
 

 have a clearly aligned purpose and vision; 

 be functional and fit for purpose; 

 operate at low cost yet maximise commercialisation opportunities; 

 address historic issues associated with service delivery such as operating in uncompromising spaces;  

 enable rationalisation of services with opportunities to develop site specific community access projects rather than a generic 
offer; whilst  

 enabling de-duplication of skills through the rationalisation of current structures. 
 

Expected negative impacts 

 

P
age 15



  Page 4 of 11 
 
     

The development and subsequent delivery of the model is likely to lead to: 
 

 a rationalisation of service delivery points; 

 a subsequent reduction in staff numbers due to the realignment and rationalisation exercise;  

 the Council no longer having full control over the delivery of services that will be contained within the Service Delivery model; 
and 

 an increase in governance pressures with the establishment of a Trust Board for strategic direction. 
 

2. Savings proposed  
Show how the budget mandate will make savings against the current service budget. This must cover each year implicated.  This section must also 
cover any other efficiency that will arise from the mandate. 
 

 What savings and efficiencies are expected to be achieved? 

Service area Current Budget £ Proposed Cash 
Savings £ 

Proposed non 
cash efficiencies 
– non £ 

Target year  Total Savings 
proposed 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Tourism, Leisure, 
Culture and 
Youth Services  

£318,026.66 £254,000      £254,000 NNDR 80% 

Tourism, Leisure, 
Culture and 
Youth Services 

 £100,000      Income generation, 
service realignment 
and rationalisation 

         

3. Options 
 
Prior to the mandate being written, an options appraisal will have taken place.  Summarise here the outcome of the Options considered and detail the 
rationale on why they were disregarded. (see options appraisal guide for further information) 
 

Options Reason why Option was not progressed Decision Maker 
 

Status Quo 
 

 Net cost of the cultural ‘service’ alone in 2014/15 was £1.08m. 2015/16 
budget is £770k therefore the service is currently running at a deficit.  

 The museums service is hugely overstretched and unsustainable 

Cabinet  

P
age 16



  Page 5 of 11 
 
     

 The whole service area is operating independently of each other so 
opportunities for cost efficiencies and savings are being lost 

 Potentially profitable services such as catering are being run by the private 
sector so valuable profits that could support vulnerable services are being 
lost 

 Leisure and Outdoor Education maintain current income levels however the 
opportunity for investment, growth and new income targets will not be 
achievable. 

Outsourcing of central 
services to private 
companies or joint venture 
vehicles in which the local 
authority and a private 
company participate 
  

 Initial financial gains to be made but may not meet the future needs of the 
community 

 Unlikely to support the ethos of inclusive public sector service delivery as 
will be more profit rather than community focussed 

 The council will not maintain full control.   
 

 

Local Asset Backed 
Vehicles (LABVs) – where 
the local authority will 
transfer assets and a 
private company partner 
will match the value of 
those assets with capital 
to deliver infrastructure 
projects. 

 Only addresses part of the problem as this model is focussed on service 
delivery rather than infrastructure per say. 

 Initial financial gains to be made but may not meet the future needs of the 
community 

 Unlikely to support the ethos of inclusive public sector service delivery as 
will be more profit rather than community focussed 

 The council will not maintain full control.   
 

 

The use of wholly owned 
or joint venture for-profit, 
mutually-owned  
companies capable of 
distributing profits to the 
local authority.   
 

 Initial financial gains to be made but may not meet the future needs of the 
community 

 Unlikely to support the ethos of inclusive public sector service delivery as 
will be more profit rather than community focussed 

 

The use of discrete trusts 
to deliver particular 
services – this has proven 
popular in relation to 
leisure services;  
 

 Although popular evidence suggests that there are more benefits to be 
gained by economies of scale. 

 

P
age 17



  Page 6 of 11 
 
     

The outsourcing of 
management services 
related to particular 
functions to wholly owned 
local authority companies 
– such as the Arm’s 
Length Management 
Organisations (ALMOs)  
 

 The proposed Trust Model is an expansion of an ALMO but with a 
community purpose 

 The Trading Arm also offers an opportunity for increased income 
generation and cross subsidisation 

 

Joint commissioning with 
other local authorities   

 Monmouthshire County Council will not maintain full control.   
 

 

 
4. Consultation 

 

Have you undertaken any initial consultation on the idea(s)? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

   

 

Has the specific budget mandate been consulted on? 

Function Date  Details of any changes made? 

Department Management Team    

Other Service Contributing to / impacted   

Senior leadership team   

Select Committee  22nd 24th Sept informal formal.  Formal 4th November. 

Public or other stakeholders   Consultation commences on the 8th October and runs until 30th November. Events will take place 
on week commencing 16th and 23rd November. ( in line with consultation plan) 

Cabinet (sign off to proceed)   

  

Will any further consultation be needed? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

   

P
age 18



  Page 7 of 11 
 
     

 
 

5. Actions to deliver the mandate  
Describe the key activities that will be undertaken to deliver the mandates and the action holders. This includes any actions contributed to by other 
services. Give the timescales to complete the work. This must also factor in any business activities that will need to be done differently or cease in 
order to achieve the mandate.  
 

Action  Officer/ Service responsible Timescale 

Assessment of existing service area review and instigation of additional reviews 
to be undertaken i.e. Leisure Services and Youth Service  

Ian Saunders/Tracey Thomas/Ian 
Kennet/Cath Fallon  

Sept – Dec 2015 

Staff consultations  Ian Saunders/Tracey Thomas/Ian 
Kennet/Cath Fallon 

September 2015 onwards 

Assessment of viability of existing MCC CIC CMC2 to determine if it can be 
adapted to fit new purpose 

Cath Fallon Sept – Dec 2015 

Establishment of Trading Company and new service delivery model (if CMC2 is 
deemed unsuitable) 

Cath Fallon  Dec – March 2016 

Capital Assets Transfer to Model to enable NNDR savings and scope for new 
Model to leverage in third party finance 

Cath Fallon/Ian Saunders/Ben 
Winstanley  

Dec – March 2016 

Financial disaggregation of service area budgets and cost benefit analysis to 
identify areas of duplication, inefficiencies and budget savings to ensure any 
services transferred into the model will be operating at maximum efficiency. 

Cath Fallon/Ian Saunders/Finance 
colleagues  

Sept – March 2016 

Assess capital investment requirements prior to capital assets being transferred 
into Model  

Cath Fallon/Ian Saunders/Finance 
colleagues/Estates team  

Sept – March 2016 

Commence lease termination process for those assets that will no longer be 
required for new Service Delivery model. 

Cath Fallon/Ian Saunders/Finance 
colleagues/Estates team 

Sept – March 2016 

Identify suitable staffing structures for both the Service Delivery Model and the 
Trading company and commence TUPE and recruitment processes. 

Ian Saunders/Tracey Thomas/Ian 
Kennet/Cath Fallon 

Dec 2015 – September 
2016 

Establishment of policy and procedures for Trading Company and Service 
Delivery Model  

Cath Fallon  April 2016 – September 
2016 

Establishment of governance structures for Service Delivery Model to include a 
Board of Directors  

Cath Fallon  April 2016 – September 
2016 

Establishment of banking and audit procedures for Trading Company and 
Service Delivery Model  

Cath Fallon  April 2016 – September  
2016 

Service Delivery Model and Trading Company to commence trading   September 2016 

*Note:  additional advice will be sought to identify best practice models to 
ensure that no steps are missed in the development process. 

  

P
age 19



  Page 8 of 11 
 
     

6. Additional resource/ business needs  
Describe any additional finance, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposed mandate successfully. For example new funding, 
expertise e.g. marketing and knowledge etc.. 
 

Any additional investment required Where will the investment come from  Any other resource/ business need (non-
financial)  
 

Extension of Amion contract to undertake 
further service reviews £20,000 

Invest to Redesign  Buy in from service leads and Senior 
Leadership Team 

Backfilling of Senior Officer posts to enable 
the model to be developed and delivered 
£10,000 

Invest to Redesign  

Professional advocacy and skills regarding 
legal issues and facilitation of workshops 
£10,000 

Invest to Redesign  

 

7. Measuring performance on the mandate 
How do you intend to measure the impact of the mandate?  This could include: speed of service; quality of service; customer satisfaction; unit cost; 
overall cost. For advice on developing performance measures you can contact Policy and Performance Team, for advice on unit costs speak with 
your directorate accountant. 
 

Focus-  Budget 
/ Process / 
Staff / 
Customer 

Indicator  Actual 
2016/17 

Actual 
2017/18 

Actual 
2018/19 

Actual  
2019/20 

Target 
2016/17  

Target 
2017/18  

Target 
2018/19 

Target 
2019/20 

Budget  Identification of cost savings and efficiencies to be 
made as a result of service reviews  

£254k        

Process  Identification of service rationalisation 
opportunities for services included in the proposed 
model. 

£100k        

Staff  Identification of staffing efficiencies as a result of 
service reviews 

tbc        

Customer  As a new service delivery model established with a 
drive to maintain locally accessible services 

tbc        

P
age 20



  Page 9 of 11 
 
     

excellence in customer service delivery will be key.  
Once established key performance targets will be 
set which will be clarified as part of the annual 
service delivery plans. 

8. Key Risks and Issues 
Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the mandate, including any negative impacts identified in section 
1 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out the steps that will be taken to mitigate these.  The risks should be scored in accordance with the 
council’s policy. 
 

Barrier or Risk 
Strategic/ 

Operational 

Reason why 
identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Assessment 
Mitigating Actions 

Post 
mitigation 
risk level 

Likelihood Impact Overall 
Level 

Lack of  buy in 
from Senior 
Leadership 
team 

Strategic  Proposal yet to be 
approved  

Possible  Major  High  Full options appraisal and delivery plan to 
be presented. 

Low 

Lack of buy in 
from Council 
Members  

Strategic  Proposal yet to be 
approved 

Possible  Major  High  Full options appraisal and delivery plan to 
be presented. 

Low 

Financial 
disaggregation 
of service area 
budgets  

Operational  Current lack of 
clarity  

Likely  Substantial High  Clear financial analysis to be presented by 
financial colleagues. 

Low  

Lack of 
acceptance 
from staff 
members  

Operational  Current confusion 
as a result of limited 
information 
available. 

Likely  Substantial  Medium  Clear options appraisal and delivery plan to 
be presented.  Full consultation process to 
be undertaken. 

Low 

Council will no 
longer have full 
control over the 
delivery of the 
services that 
will be 
contained 
within the 

Strategic 
and 
operational  

Service delivery 
model will be guided 
by an independent 
Board 

Likely  Substantial  Low  As the Council will be the sole member of 
the service delivery model there is little risk 
that the Board will make decisions that are 
contrary to the priorities of the Council. 

Low 

P
age 21

http://hub/corporatedocs/Performance%20Mngmnt/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Guidance%20-%20updated%20March%202015.docx


  Page 10 of 11 
 
     

service delivery 
model. 

Council will be 
required to 
make a 
payment for the 
delivery of 
services 
pertaining to 
the annual 
delivery plan. 

Strategic 
and 
operational 

An annual payment 
will be made by the 
Council in return for 
services delivered. 

Likely  Moderate Low  Key performance measures and targets will 
be included in the annual delivery plan to 
ensure that non-performance or failure can 
be addressed immediately. 

Low 

 

9. Assumptions 
Describe any assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 
 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

New service delivery 
model and trading 
company will be 
approved 

Given the backdrop of increasing austerity if local service delivery is to be 
maintained then new methods of delivery will be required  

Cabinet/Council 

The service area 
reviews will identify 
opportunities for 
service rationalisation 
and increased 
efficiencies. 

The opportunity to assess the viability of current services through the lens of 
rationalisation and increased efficiency is highly likely to identify cost savings.  In 
addition the rationalisation and subsequent realisation of the capital assets of some 
sites will not only lead to a capital receipt but also reduced overheads across the 
service areas.  
 

Cabinet/Council 

 

10. Monitoring the budget mandate  
The budget mandates must be monitored through directorate budget monitoring. This will lead into corporate budget monitoring. In addition the action 
plan, performance measures and the risk assessment must be transferred into the service plans for the business area in order to monitor and 
challenge the delivery of the budget mandate, including the savings being achieved and the level of impact. 
 

P
age 22



  Page 11 of 11 
 
     

11. Evaluation 
 
It is important to evaluate the impact of the mandate once it has been fully delivered to know whether it has successfully achieved what it set out to do 
and to ensure that findings can be used to inform future work. 
 

Planned Evaluation Dates Who will complete the evaluation? 

December 2015, March 2016, June 
2016, September 2016 

Chief Officer, Kellie Beirne 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
      
 

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation 
 
 
Phone no: 07876545793 
E-mail:iansaunders@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

The aim is to move the services inside tourism, leisure and 

culture into a new delivery model (trust) operating at arm’s 

length from the council. The trust will be commercially driven via 

a trading company whilst ensuring local services are maintained 

and improved.  Mandate B1 

Name of Service Tourism Leisure & Culture (there will also be 

consideration to Youth Service and Parks/Open Spaces) 

 

Date Future Generations Evaluation 19th Sept 2015 

 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together 

with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. 

Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

The new trust will provide employment, training 

and ensure the service are run with quality. Many 

of the services included in the model do provide 

positive outcomes to communities. 

A trust model would pay reduced rate of NNDR. 

While benefitting the trust this would reduce the 

tax take that is available for redistribution to other 

The current services need investment and the trust 

model gives an opportunity to invest in people and 

ensure people have skills to do their job. If the trust 

does not go ahead the services may have to close 

Future Generations Evaluation  
( includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact Assessments)  

P
age 25



Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

public services in Wales including 

Monmouthshire. 

 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

Ensure that decisions are made after careful 

consideration to future needs 

Work closely with biodiversity team  

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 

Enhanced community services such as leisure, 

sports development & culture have a massive role 

to play in ensuring health and well-being is at the 

centre of peoples lives. 

Maintaining services will allow the continuation of 

GP exercise referral programme which has a 

positive impact for those referred including those 

with mental health problems who benefit from 

excercise 

Working with key partners to ensure key programs 

are delivered such as exercise referral. If the 

services are more efficient at marketing what they 

do and access to services is improved then health 

will benefit  

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 

The role of the trust as a hub for information and 

networks. High footfall through these services and 

a connected workforce should ensure this is 

positive. 

Services such as tourism, events ensure viable and 

resilient communities by generating footfall 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 

In a positive way the trust will help deliver some of 

the priorities of Welsh Govt programs 

Ensure services are aware of key Welsh 

Government initiatives and connect. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 

The trust will focus on attracting more people to 

enjoy participation in many different activities. The 

To increase use and the quality on offer should be 

a key driver for the trust. If more people are more 

P
age 26



Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 

package of tourism, leisure and culture is at the 

heart of this model.   

active more often or regularly participating in art 

and culture there are many positive benefits. 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

A trust model of provision offers the potential to put 

services on a more sustainable financial footing.  This 

would maintain a service offer to a much broader 

section of the population that if left to the private 

market alone which would be likely to result in higher 

prices which would exclude those on lower income 

groups which proportionately contain more older 

people and people with disabilities 

All people will have opportunities to progress have 

access to services and thrive. 

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development 

Principle  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have 

met this principle? 

What has been done to better to meet this 
principle? 

Balancing 

short term 

need with 

long term and 

planning for 

the future 

Short term need is maintaining quality services and looking 

to develop sustainable business models that have long term 

viability. Long term business plans, investment plans and 

capital investment plans would all ensure the future 

generations are considered in this process.  

 

The development of the trust will include the need for 
decisions to be made with the long term needs of the 
business/service. A board of trustees would help guide the 
process to ensure the correct balance is delivered. 

P
age 27



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have 

met this principle? 

What has been done to better to meet this 
principle? 

Working 

together with 

other 

partners to 

deliver 

objectives  

The services in tourism leisure and culture have key 

stakeholders and partners that they currently work with. 

Internal MCC departments, Sport Wales and Art Wales, 

CADW, Public Health Wales and Town & Community 

Councils all factor heavily in working together.  

The work around partners and delivering key programs 
are critical for the trust. There would be work on 
governance and business plans to ensure collaboration is 
in the centre of the model. 

Involving 

those with an 

interest and 

seeking their 

views 

The services in tourism leisure and culture have key 

stakeholders and partners that they currently work with. 

Internal MCC departments, CYP, Sport Wales and Art 

Wales, CADW, Public Health Wales and Town & 

Community Councils all factor heavily in this work and 

consultation is planned going forwards 

The community and users groups will be included as in 
the cultural services review. Also our key stakeholders. 

Putting 

resources 

into 

preventing 

problems 

occurring or getting worse 

The need to explore options and invest in resources to 

ensure this work moves forward at pace is recognized. 

The current budgets for maintenance and investment 

across MCC is extremely limited. 

The trust would develop business plans and investment 
strategies to help improve  

Positively 

impacting on 

people, 

economy and 

environment 

and trying to benefit all three 

If the trust model is viable then the end product will be a 

vehicle which provides the community, economy and 

environment benefits. Improved people led services with 

improvements to buildings and improved management of 

environment and outdoor spaces. 

Some initial work completed in the review of cultural 
services and the need to commit to widespread 
consultation and delivering the model. 

 

P
age 28



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Age Access to services impacts all ages. If the 
new trust provides better quality facilities 
and keeps them open this is positive. A trust 
model of provision offers the potential to put 
services on a more sustainable financial 
footing.  This would maintain a service offer 
to a much broader section of the population 
that if left to the private market alone which 
would be likely to result in higher prices 
which would exclude those on lower income 
groups which proportionately contain more 
older people and people with disabilities 

 Sustainable delivery models 

Disability Trust will continue to work with key partners 
and organisations to support.  A trust model 
would maintain a service offer which is 
affordable to a much broader section of the 
population than if left to private provision. 
Lower income groups tend to include a 
higher proportion of people with disabilities 

 Any agreement to transfer services to a 

new organisation, there needs to be a 

requirement to adhere to the Council's 

policies on Equality. This includes 

access to goods and services, 

recruitment and retention of staff. The 

service will undertake a profile of it’s 

users and monitor service use 24 

months after the transfer to any new 

organiosation to ensure that should any 

unforeseen negative impact materialize 

then it is identified and addressed.  

Gender 

reassignment 

Neutral Neutral As above 

P
age 29



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

Neutral Neutral As above 

Race Neutral Neutral As above 

Religion or Belief Neutral Neutral As above 

Sex Neutral Neutral As above 

Sexual Orientation Neutral Neutral Neutral 

 

Welsh Language 

Neutral Neutral Neutral 

 

P
age 30



4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and 
safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
note http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx  and for more 
on Monmouthshire’s Corporate Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx 

 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  The new trust will ensure levels of 
safeguarding are at the same levels as 
they currently stand inside the local 
authority.  

  

Corporate Parenting  It is essential that responsibilities 
currently undertaking by the various 
departments inside TLC are built into 
future plans for the trust. Certainly 
passport to leisure schemes and various 
schemes give access to LAC’s and other 
vulnerable groups. Services such as 
youth, outdoor education and leisure all 
contribute to this area. 

 Links/governance to MCC must be 
maintained in the new delivery 
model to ensure these 
responsibilities are 
maintained/considered. 

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

Over the last few financial periods the services have had around 30% efficiencies and an increased expectation to drive enhanced levels of income.  With the continued 
pressure of the MTFP the services are at a stage where some of them will close if a new model is not developed. Each site needs significant investment to maintain levels 
of income and to increase commercial output.  
The various services have undertaken reviews – the most recent being the cultural services review and interpretation of the recommendations are currently underway. The 
review of outdoor education service is also near to completion.  
Welsh Government have completed the expert museums review which has given some recommendations around coordinating leadership to deliver local services, local 
authority to consider all models of deliver and also development of collections and skills – Welsh Government that museums directly provided by authorities should be give 
relief from NNDR on the same basis as museums that are operated by charities. 
Neighbouring authorities have moved their leisure services into a trust model and have seen some positive investments leading to enhanced income opportunities.  
Initial project work has identified that a new trust model (currently looking at several options) would give some immediate benefits in particular around NNDR whilst looking 
at a timetable to work through the necessary governance, consultation necessary. 

 

 

P
age 31

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 

The new model trust would look to develop its existing offer across MCC. The need for clear vision and purpose and close working with stakeholder and 

community groups/user groups. The opportunity to create and deliver a clear business plan for each service with investment strategy and move forward 

with commercial opportunities as they present themselves.  

Current budgets inside property maintenance and capital programs have been diminished and prioritized for the 21st Century schools program. 

The trust would be in a position to move quickly and make decisions at a faster pace than current local government legislation – this too would be 

critical to ensure the trust is a success. 

To introduce a commercial trading arm which will help to generate income into the trust and also ensure the specialized skills are available to drive this 

area of the business. 

Grants and some programs are not available to local authority so opportunities to increase this area. 

Work is underway to put a project group together which includes staff/union liaison, governance, communications – senior officers will be seconded to 

the project to ensure this work moves at the pace necessary for implementation. 

 

, 

 

 

 

 

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if 
applicable.  

 

What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  Progress  

Budgets and information Ongoing Ian Saunders, Cath Fallon  

Speak to staff and update 

progress - consultations 

Sept 15 - onwards Ian Saunders  

Write paper around resources & 

project needs – extending scope of 

consultants brief. 

Sept 15 Kel Beirne    

Governance arrangements Sept 15 - onwards Cath Fallon  

P
age 32



Deliver timetable of progress and 

milestones 

Ongoing Project team & Amion  

Move buildings into trust vehicle By April 2015 Ian S, Cath F, service managers, 

legal and estates 
 

 

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.  

 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  As the project progresses. 

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  Page 1 of 9 
 
     

Business Change Mandate (Including Budget Mandates) Proposal Number: B20 
Title: Review of service provision for children with special educational needs with the authority. ( 
phase 3) 
 
 
All information requested must be completed on the proposed mandate to enable the Cabinet to decide whether to proceed with the 
proposal.  
 

Mandate Completed by  Stephanie Hawkins – Principal Officer Additional Learning Needs 

Date    September 2015 

 

How much savings will it generate and over what period?  

£200,000 in 2016/17. 
 
 

Directorate & Service Area responsible  

Children and Young People 
 

Mandate lead(s) 

Key Lead:                         Stephanie Hawkins 
Project Team:                   Sharon Randall Smith  
                                         Cath Sheen  
                                         Richard Austin 
                                         Jill Thomas  
                                          

 
 
 

Final mandate approved by Cabinet 
 

Date:  

 
  

P
age 35



 

  Page 2 of 9 
 
     

 

1. Vision and Outcomes of the Mandate  
Give a business context for the mandate.  This must pick up on the vision and what the new / improved / reduced service will look like in the future 
including the anticipated experience of users.  It must also consider any impact on the Council’s key priorities and strategic outcomes. Similarly does 
it impact on service performance within the immediate service area or any impact on other services provided by the authority / any other providers.  In 
doing so, the mandate must be tested against the Future Generations Evaluation and must consider impact in relation to the new Future Generations 
Bill.   
 

What is the issue that the proposal is seeking to address? 

 
The objective of the proposal is to consider how best the Authority could meet the needs of pupils with moderate to severe learning difficulties in 
specialist placements within Monmouthshire schools.  The special needs resource bases that provide placement for pupils at the more severe 
end of the spectrum are full utilised, however, the facility which is designated for moderate learning difficulties pupils with social and emotional 
learning difficulties is currently underutilised and is not meeting the needs of Monmouthshire pupils as directed by Statement of Special 
Educational Needs. 

What evidence have you got that this needs to be addressed? 

The current provision is an SEN Resource Base, made up of 2 classes and funded by the Authority. ( Based within Deri View School) It 
supports pupils in the Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 (pupils aged 4 to 11 years) with special educational needs: namely those who are 
experiencing learning difficulties to a moderate degree (general cognitive ability of less than 70) usually with additional social, emotional and 
behavioural difficulties (SEBD).  In addition, placement may be considered at the resource base for some pupils who fall outside this strict 
criteria but for whom the appropriate educational professionals consider its resources and facilities appropriate.  Admission to the Resource 
Base has been widened to consider pupils with more severe learning difficulties and/or an Autistic Spectrum Disorder with learning difficulties.   
This Resource Base currently is underutilised by pupils from Monmouthshire and has 7 pupils who could either be supported in mainstream or 
need more specialist provision.  The pupil numbers in the SNLB have declined over time and significantly in the last 3 years. 
The current provision is not fully utilised in Deri View Primary School, the cluster area or Monmouthshire as a whole, as evidenced by the 
reduction in numbers. 
The provision does not fulfil the original brief for the school or the Local Authority as defined by the ‘aims of the SNRB’.  The intention of the 
SNRB was to provide interim support for pupils with SEBD/MLD from across Monmouthshire.  Its strategic impact has been minimal and given 
the reduction in number it is no longer providing the school or the Local authority with value for money.  The needs of the school are now 
focused on early intervention within the community to close the gap in attainment between pupils in an area of high deprivation.  Both reseach 
and our experience shows that where education within the mainstream classroom is appropriate with the relevant support it can be hugely 
beneficial in developing skills to prepare our children and young people to become as  independent as possible.   ( see projected pupil 
numbers for SNRB attached)  
 

How will this proposal address this issue 

P
age 36



 

  Page 3 of 9 
 
     

2. Savings proposed  
Show how the budget mandate will make savings against the current service budget. This must cover each year implicated.  This section must also 
cover any other efficiency that will arise from the mandate. 
 

What savings and efficiencies are expected to be achieved? 

Service area Current Budget £ Proposed Cash 
Savings £ 

Proposed non cash 
efficiencies – non £ 

Target year Total Savings 
proposed 16/17 17/18 18/19 

Additional Learning 
Needs SNRB 

£200,000. £200,000  200,000   £200,000 

This proposal will allow Deri View Primary School to concentrate their resources on the provision of Early Years intervention and use the 
specialist resources within school to support this. 

What will it look like when you have implemented the proposal 

There will be 2 special needs facilities one in the north and one in the south which will support the needs of pupils who are experiencing a range 
of difficulties including moderate to severe, profound & complex, autistic spectrum disorder and other pervasive developmental disorders. 
Children that are integrated into mainstream classes will access to appropriate skilled support in order to ensure that we meet their individual 
needs.   Integrating all children where appropriate will have a positive impact on those pupils in already mainstream.  Learning to interact and 
appreciate those with additional learning needs would have a positive impact on our adults of the future and our cohesive society. 
 

Expected positive impacts 

An underused facility that does not meet the needs of the children in Monmouthshire will be closed.  To allow the school the use of the two 
classrooms for Early Years Intervention or any other support they deem necessary.   We believe this potential impact is minimal due to the 
small number of children and in order to mitigate against this we will ensure that the support provided is of a specialist nature and that training is 
provided to mainstream staff the school if required. This will only potentially impact one school in Monmouthshire ( Deri View) where there is 
significant experience and skills available to fully support this transition. There will be minimal disruption for the pupils as they are already 
familiar with the building, teaching & support staff and other pupils. 
 

Expected negative impacts 

We recognise that the inclusion of this small number of pupils into mainstream may have a distracting influence in the classroom for other 
pupils.  We believe this potential impact is minimal due to the small number of children and in order to mitigate against this we will ensure that 
the support provided is of a specialist nature and that training is provided to mainstream staff the school if required. This will only potentially 
impact one school in Monmouthshire ( Deri View) where there is significant experience and skills available to fully support this transition. There 
will be minimal disruption for the pupils as they are already familiar with the building, teaching & support staff and other pupils 
 
There could be potential redundancy costs following the implementation of the protection of employment policy. 
 

P
age 37



 

  Page 4 of 9 
 
     

provision 

        

        

 

 

 

 

3. Options 
 
Prior to the mandate being written, an options appraisal will have taken place.  Summarise here the outcome of the Options considered and detail the 
rationale on why they were disregarded. (see options appraisal guide for further information) 
 

Options Reason why Option was not progressed 

 
1. Continue with the running of the Special Needs Resource Base (SNRB) 

within Deri View. 

The resource base is currently underutilised and has 7 pupils 
that could be supported in mainstream or more specialist 
provision. 
The current provision is equipped and resourced to 
accommodate 24 children.  
The current provision has not been able to fulfil the original brief 
for the school or the local authority as defined by the ‘aim of the 
SNRB’. 

2. Close all 3 Resource Bases (Overmonnow, Pembroke) and support all 
children in mainstream education. 

This option was not cost effective and could potentially result in 
lost specialism. 

 
4. Consultation 
 

Have you undertaken any initial consultation on the idea(s)? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

P
age 38



 

  Page 5 of 9 
 
     

Stephanie Hawkins Principal Officer, Additional Learning Needs  

 

Has the specific budget mandate been consulted on? 

Function Date  Details of any changes made? 

Department Management Team  3rd September 2015  

Other Service Contributing to / impacted   

Senior leadership team 8th September 2015  

Select Committee  12th November 2015  

Public or other stakeholders   In line with consultation & engagement plan 

Cabinet (sign off to proceed) 21st October 2015  

Neighbouring Local Authorities   

Head Teacher, teachers and parent of 
children attending Deri View Primary 
School 

See attached 
statutory 

consultation 
process. 

 

Governing Body of schools in 
Abergavenny Cluster 

 

Staff and parents of children attending 
the SEN unit at Deri View Primary 

 

Church in Wales Diocesan and RC 
Diocesan 

 

Welsh Ministers  

Local AM – Nick Ramsey  

Local MP – David Davies  

Estyn  

Educational Achievement Service  

Regional Transport Consortium  

Professional Associations and Trade 
Unions 

 

Police and Crime Commissioner  

Abergavenny town council, Llantillo 
Pertholey Community Council. 

 

Admission Forum  

Local Community Frist Partnership  

SNP Cymru Parent Partnership Service  

Child Development Team, Aneurin 
Bevan Health Board. 

  

P
age 39



 

  Page 6 of 9 
 
     

  

Will any further consultation be needed? 

All consultation will be carried out in in line with statutory consultation rules. 

   

 
 
5. Actions to deliver the mandate  

Describe the key activities that will be undertaken to deliver the mandates and the action holders. This includes any actions contributed to by other 
services. Give the timescales to complete the work. This must also factor in any business activities that will need to be done differently or cease in 
order to achieve the mandate.  
 

Action  Officer/ Service responsible Timescale 

   

   

   

   

6. Additional resource/ business needs  
Describe any additional finance, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposed mandate successfully. For example new funding, 
expertise e.g. marketing and knowledge etc. 
 

Any additional investment required Where will the investment come from  Any other resource/ business need (non-
financial)  
 

No capital expenditure anticipated. The 
building is in good state of repair for the 2 
rooms to be given back to the school. 

Not applicable  

Project Management This will be provided by the current management 
team within CYP. 

 

Potential redundancies  estimated costs (at 
worse) £54,000. 

In line with policy.  If applicable any redundancy 
costs will not come out of the ALN budget. 

 

   

 

P
age 40



 

  Page 7 of 9 
 
     

7. Measuring performance on the mandate 
How do you intend to measure the impact of the mandate?  This could include: speed of service; quality of service; customer satisfaction; unit cost; 
overall cost. For advice on developing performance measures you can contact Policy and Performance Team, for advice on unit costs speak with 
your directorate accountant. 
 

Focus-  Budget / 
Process / Staff / 
Customer 

Indicator  Actual 
2016/17 

Actual 
2017/18 

Actual 
2018/19 

Target 
2016/17  

Target 
2017/18  

Target 
2018/19 

Project Plan Complete all milestones with the agreed timeline       

Children Measureable outcomes of pupil performance       

 Estyn       

 Attendance       

        

8. Key Risks and Issues 
Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the mandate, including any negative impacts identified in section 
1 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out the steps that will be taken to mitigate these.  The risks should be scored in accordance with the 
council’s policy. 
 

Barrier or Risk 
Strategic/ 

Operational 

Reason why 
identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Assessment 

Mitigating Actions 

Post 
mitigation 
risk level 

Likelihood Impact Overall 
Level 

In the future a 
child with 
moderate 
learning 
difficulties and 
SEBD can not 
have their 
needs met in 
Deri View 
special needs 
resource base. 

Operational  Low Low Low Staff training to build capacity in school.  

        

        

P
age 41

http://hub/corporatedocs/Performance%20Mngmnt/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Guidance%20-%20updated%20March%202015.docx


 

  Page 8 of 9 
 
     

        

        

        

 

9. Assumptions 
Describe any assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 
 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

That the children who leave the 
resource base with have their needs 
met locally. 

  

That staff will be subject to protection 
of employment policy and will be 
supported to find re-deployment. 

  

   

   

   

   

 
 
 

10. Monitoring the budget mandate  
The budget mandates must be monitored through directorate budget monitoring. This will lead into corporate budget monitoring. In addition the action 
plan, performance measures and the risk assessment must be transferred into the service plans for the business area in order to monitor and 
challenge the delivery of the budget mandate, including the savings being achieved and the level of impact. 
 

Has the specific budget mandate been consulted on? 

Function Date  Details of any changes made? 

Department Management Team    

Other Service Contributing to / impacted   

Senior leadership team   

Select Committee    

Public or other stakeholders     

P
age 42



 

  Page 9 of 9 
 
     

Cabinet (sign off to proceed)   

  

Will any further consultation be needed? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

   

 

11. Evaluation 
 
It is important to evaluate the impact of the mandate once it has been fully delivered to know whether it has successfully achieved what it set out to do 
and to ensure that findings can be used to inform future work. 
 

Planned Evaluation Date Who will complete the evaluation? 

Via the SIP and usual budget 
monitoring process. 
 

Head of service, DMT, select. 

 P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

                  

 

                      

STATUTORY 
CONSULTATION 
DOCUMENT 
 
Proposal to close the Special Needs Resource Base at Deri 
View Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11 years with 
moderate learning difficulties  and social emotional and 
behavioural difficulties. 

  Author: Stephanie Hawkins 

  Date: September 2015 

Page 45



2 
 

Contents 

 
 
 
Introductory Letter        3 
 
The Proposal         4 
 
Background Information       4 
 
Pupil Places         5 
 
Inspection Findings        6 
 
Budget Implications        7 
 
Personnel / Staffing Implications      8 
 
Transport and Environmental Impact     8 
 
Expected Benefits and Disadvantages     8 
 
Conclusion         8 
 
Timetable for Statutory Consultation     10 
 
Response Pro Forma       12 
 
Appendix 1 – Distribution List for Statutory Consultation  14 
 
Appendix 2 – Equality Impact Assessment    15 
 
 
 

  

Monmouthshire County Council  
@ Innovation House, Wales 1 
Business Park, Magor, 
Monmouthshire, NP26 3DG 
 

Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
@Ty Arloesi, Wales 1, Magwyr, Monmouthshire 
NP26 3DG 
 
  

 
 

 

Page 46



3 
 

To: Statutory Consultees and Other Interested Parties 
 
 
21 September 2015 
 
 
Dear Consultee, 
 

RE: PROPOSAL TO CLOSE THE SPECIAL NEEDS RESOURCES BASE AT DERI 
VIEW PRIMARY SCHOOL FOR PUPILS AGED 4 to 11 YEARS WHO HAVE 
MODERATE LEARNING DIFFICULTIES AND SOCIAL, EMOTIONAL AND 

BEHAVIOURAL DIFFICULTIES. 
 

On 20th September 2015, a Cabinet Decision was made to commence consultation on 
the proposal to close the Special Needs Resource Base for pupils aged 4 to 11 years 
who have moderate learning difficulties and social, emotional and behavioural difficulties 
based in Deri View Primary School, Abergavenny. 
 
The proposal does not necessitate any building works or refurbishment, therefore the 
intention is for this change to be implemented in April 2016. 
 
The consultation period must be at least 42 days, with at least 20 of these being school 
days. To comply with this requirement the consultation period will commence on 19 
October 2015 and will close on 27 November 2015. 
 
Any comments can be made by completing the response proforma at the back of the 
consultation document and returning it by email to 
stephaniehawkins@monmouthshire.gov.uk or by post to the above address. 
 
Alternatively, you can attend a ‘drop-in’ session at Deri View Primary School on the 19 
October, 2015, 6.30pm to 8pm. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Stephanie Hawkins 
Principal Officer 
Additional Learning Needs 

Please contact/Cysyllter a:     Stephanie Hawkins 

Tel/Ffôn:       01633 644486 

E-Mail/Ebost:         

 Stephaniehawkins@monmouthshire.gov.uk   
Web/Gwefan:       www.monmouthshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 47

mailto:stephaniehawkins@monmouthshire.gov.uk
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


4 
 

STATUTORY CONSULTATION REPORT 
 
 
 

THE PROPOSAL 
 

As part of the Additional Learning Needs (ALN) review Monmouthshire County 
Council proposes to close the Special Needs Resource Base (SNRB) in Deri 
View Primary School as this is an underused which does not meet the needs 
of the Authority or the school as it has not been able to fulfil the original brief for 
the school or the Local Authority as defined by the “Aims of the SNRB”. Its 
strategic impact has been minimal and it has neither provided the school or the 
Local Authority with value for money.  The needs of the school are now focused 
on early intervention within the community to close the gap in attainment 
between pupils in an area of high deprivation.  
 
The current 7 children on roll in the SNRB will be supported either in the 
mainstream school or in 2 cases directed by statement of special educational 
needs to specialist provision.   
 
The proposal would not require any building work or refurbishment, but would 

 require a staffing restructure. 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

Deri View Primary School is a community primary school situated in the small 
market town of Abergavenny in the north west of Monmouthshire.  It was 
opened in September 2005 following the closure of three smaller local schools.  
The school which has a capacity for 410 pupils but currently only has 256 on 
roll.  The Nursery has the capacity to offer 60 places in the morning and 
afternoon sessions but currently has 27 children in the morning and 29 children 
in the afternoon.  The SNRB has capacity for 24 children but currently has 7 
children on roll who are all subject to a Statement of Special Educational Needs.  
There is a Local Authority Children’s Centre, “Acorn Centre”, attached to the 
school from which Flying Start and Family First Projects operate.   
 
The area surrounding the school is economically and socially mixed where 
there is some degree of disadvantage.  The majority of pupils who attend Deri 
View come primarily from the local housing estates where there is a high level 
of social and financial disadvantage and from the wider area of Abergavenny 
town.  42% of pupils are entitled to free school meals.  This is 11% above the 
Monmouthshire average, Deri View being the only school in Monmouthshire 
with over 32% of pupils entitled to receive free school meals. 
 
99.4% of pupils come from English speaking homes and no pupils speak Welsh 
as a first language at home.  The remaining pupils come from other ethnic 
groups.  4 pupils are Looked After by the Local Authority and there are 5 pupils 
on the Child Protection Register.  School report that pupils’ ability on entry is 
generally lower than the Local Authority average.  64 pupils on roll have been 

Page 48



5 
 

identified as having special educational needs of these 11 pupils have 
Statements of Special Educational Needs (SEN), 34 pupils are at School Action 
and 19 pupils at School Action Plus of the SEN Code of Practice Wales (2002).  
However, a large number of pupils are identified as being vulnerable and are 
supported through intervention programmes, the school’s Family Support 
Worker, Social Services and other voluntary organisations, i.e. Young Carers. 
 
School reports that a high proportion of pupils on roll present with high levels of 
deprivation and poor acquisition of the early years basic skills including 
language and social development.  The school is currently working with 
Monmouthshire Local Authority to develop a supported Early Years intervention 
to remediate this. 

 
The SNRB admits pupils in the Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 (children 
aged 4 to 11 years) with complex special educational needs; namely those who 
are experiencing learning difficulties to a moderate degree (General Cognitive 
Ability of less than 70) usually with additional social, emotional and behavioural 
difficulties (SEBD).  In addition, placement may be considered at the SNRB for 
some children who fall outside this strict criteria but for whom the appropriate 
educational professionals consider its resources and facilities appropriate.  In 
order to increase the effectiveness of the SNRB admittance has been widened 
to consider children with more severe learning difficulties and/or an Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder with learning difficulties.   
 
From its outset, the SNRB has never been intended as a long term placement 
for children, however, the aim of the SNRB was to work with children who 
present with the difficulties outlined above and then successfully return them to 
their mainstream school by helping them develop the academic, social and 
emotional skills to allow independent learning and positive social and emotional 
functions.  To date no children placed by the Local Authority in the SNRB have 
been returned to their substantive placement. 

 
 

 

PUPIL PLACES 
 
 The pupil numbers for the SNRB detailed below have been provided by the 

school and are also included in the school’s number.  The SNRB was full at 24 
pupils in May 2007 and this continued until July 2011.The situation has been in 
decline since that time as the figures provided by the school evidence. 

 

Year Autumn Term 
Pupil Numbers 

Spring Term 
Pupil Numbers 

Summer Term 
Pupil Numbers 

2012-13 12 12 12 

2013-14 16 16 16 

2014-15 16 9 7 

 
  

Admission numbers at Deri View Primary School are as follows: 
 

Page 49



6 
 

Year Total Capacity Number of 
Pupils on Roll 

Number of 
Pupils in 

SNRB 

2012-13 420 278 12 

2013-14 420 260 16 

2014-15 420 256 7 

 
The pupil projection below are based on the numbers on roll as at January 
2015 pupil level annual school census (plasc) data and the pupils born within 
the schools catchment area.  They also take into account current parental 
preference trends and pupils generated from proposed housing developments 
within the schools catchment area. These forecasted figures do not reflect 
parental preference, and parental choice for Welsh medium or faith schools. 
 

Year Total Capacity Projected Number 
of Pupils in SNRB 

2015-16 252 4 

2016-17 276 1 

2017-18 290 1 

2018-19 296 1 

2019-20 304 0 

 
 
 
 

INSPECTION FINDINGS January 2013 
 
 
The school’s current 
performance  

Adequate  

The school’s prospects for 
improvement  

Adequate  

 
 
Current performance 
 
 The school’s performance is adequate because:  
 

standards in literacy, particularly in speaking, listening and reading, are 
improving;  

most pupils show steady progress in developing good numerical skills;  
many pupils with additional learning needs attain the expected level at the end 

of the key stage;  

feature of the school;  
ds are very well 

supported; and  

backgrounds and circumstance is very effective.  
 

Page 50



7 
 

However:  
 

 
 thinking, independent working and information and 

communication technology skills (ICT) are weak; and  
 

 
Prospects for improvement  
 

  

The school’s current 
performance  

Adequate  

The school’s prospects for 
improvement  

Adequate  

The school’s current 
performance  

Adequate  

The school’s prospects for 
improvement  

Adequate  

 
Prospects for improvement are adequate because:  
 

ead teacher has a clear strategy to improve provision and raise pupil 
standards;  

-evaluation report is honest, analytical and accurate;  
-

evaluation plan and it has clear targets which the Head teacher and the senior 
leadership team monitor regularly;  

linked to pupil outcomes; there is a clear focus on the national priorities of literacy 
and numeracy and, in particular in the context of the school, to tackling social 
disadvantage.  

 
However:  

-term budget deficit has yet to be resolved. 
 

The school was removed from Estyn monitoring in 2015. 

 
 

Resource Implications and Costs 
 
There is no capital expenditure anticipated, the building is in a good state of repair. 
However, should this proposal be put into practice there will staffing implications for 
the school; all staff employed at the school will be subject to the protection of 
employment policy which includes redeployment to other schools.  If staff were not 
redeployed there would be a one off redundancy cost.  The approximate total 
redundancy cost could be £55,000 if we were unable to redeploy staff. 
  

 

TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

Page 51



8 
 

2 pupils will be transported to out of county specialist schools 1 term earlier than they 
would have been due to transfer.  
 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS AND DISADVANTAGES 
 
Expected benefits of the closing the SNRB are: 

 More pupils will continue to have their educational needs met within their 
local mainstream primary school. 

 Maximising Monmouthshire’s Local Authority resources to ensure 
effectiveness of provision. 

 Allowing Deri View Primary School to focus their resources on the 
development of Early Years intervention and to use to their best effect the 
specialist resources within school to support this. 

 
Possible disadvantages are: 

 Two key stage 2 pupils would be transferred to specialist placement one 
term (March to August 2015) earlier than anticipated. 

 The discrete facility sited in the school for children with social, emotional and 
behavioural difficulties (SEBD) will no longer be available. 

 
   

CONCLUSION 
 

The provision has not been able to fulfil the original brief for the school or the Local 
Authority as defined by the “Aims of the SNRB”.  The intention of the SNRB was to 
provide interim support for pupils with SEBD/MLD from across Monmouthshire.  This 
has not materialised and has supported a small number of children from within the 
host school only. Its strategic impact has been minimal and it has neither provided the 
school or the Local Authority with value for money.  The needs of the school are now 
focused on early intervention within the community to close the gap in attainment 
between pupils in an area of high deprivation.  No other schools would be adversely 
affected by the proposal. 
 

Page 52



9 
 

TIMETABLE FOR STATUTORY CONSULTATION 
 
 

DMT 4 September 
2015 

Cabinet Report and EQIA to be written (as per 
template) 

20 September 
2015 

Final cabinet report with comments, recommendations 
and EQIA to be sent to Sarah King for SLT  

25 September 
2015 

Final Cabinet Report updated to Sarah King 2 October 2015 

Cabinet Meeting  7 October 2015 

Call in period ends 5pm 16 October 
2015 

Statutory Consultation Period commences 
(6 week period, at least 20 days have to be school 
days) 

19 October 
2015 

Open Evening to be held at Deri View Primary School 
and on 19 October 2015: Staff 3.30pm, Governing 
Body 5.30 pm, Parents and Other Interested Parties 
6.30 – 8pm 

19 October 
2015 

Statutory Consultation Period ends 27 November 
2015 

Report to be written including details of the 
consultation and outlining specific comments and the 
answers provided 

 

Report to DMT x 2 2 and 22 
December 2015 

Report to SLT  

Report to agree to publish statutory notice to be sent 
to Sarah King 

 

CYP Select 14 January 
2016 

Final cabinet report with comments, recommendations 
and EQIA to be sent to Sarah King 

 

Cabinet Meeting to consider comments and whether a 
Statutory Notice will be published. 

3 February 2016 

Statutory Notice to be drafted 17 February 
2016 

Statutory Notice published (must publish notice within 
26 weeks of consultation end and on a school day) 

 

28 day objection period ends (must include at least 15 
school days) 

16 March 2016 

Objection report to be written if objections received.  

Objection report and supporting documentation to be 
submitted to Sarah King for a final decision by Cabinet 

6 April 2016 

Cabinet Decision  20 April 2016 

  

 

Page 53



10 
 

RESPONSE PRO FORMA 
 

The proposal being consulted on is to close the Special Needs Resource 
Base at Deri View Primary School, Abergavenny. 
 
We would welcome your views on this proposal and any suggestions or 
alternatives you would like us to consider. 
 
Please complete and return this form to Additional Learning Needs, 
Monmouthshire County Council, @Innovation House, Wales 1 Business Park, 
Newport Road, Magor NP26 3DG, or by email to 
stephaniehawkins@monmouthshire.gov.uk  
 

 

Page 54

mailto:stephaniehawkins@monmouthshire.gov.uk


11 
 

 

Page 55



12 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
DISTRIBUTION LIST FOR STATUTORY CONSULTATION 

 

 Neighbouring Local Authorities 

 Headteacher, teachers and parents of children attending Deri View Primary 
School 

 Governing body of schools in the Abergavenny Cluster 

 Staff and parents of children attending the SEN Unit at Deri View Primary 

 Church in Wales Diocesan and Roman Catholic Diocesan 

 Welsh Ministers 

 Local AM – Nick Ramsay 

 Local MP – David Davies 

 Estyn 

 Education Achievement Service (EAS) 

 Regional Transport Consortium 

 Professional Associations and Trade Unions 

 Police and Crime Commissioner 

 Abergavenny Town Council, Llantillo Pertholey Community Council 

 Admission Forum 

 Local Community First Partnership  

 SNAP Cymru Parent Partnership Service 

 Child Development Team, Aneurin Bevan Health Board. 
 

 

 

Page 56



13 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
The “Equality Initial Challenge”   
Name: Stephanie Hawkins 
Service area: Additional Learning Needs Section, CYP 
Date completed: August, 2015 

Please give a brief description of what you are aiming to do. 
To close the special needs resources base at Deri View Primary 
School 

Protected characteristic  Potential Negative impact 
Please give details  

Potential Neutral impact 
Please give details 

Potential Positive Impact 
Please give details 

Age 2 pupils will be directed by 
statement of special 
educational needs to a 
specialist school earlier than 
anticipated 

  

Disability   Where reasonable adjustments 
can be made all children with a 
disability will be fully integrated 
into purpose built, DDA 
compliant mainstream school. 

Marriage + Civil Partnership  X  

Pregnancy and maternity  X  

Race  X  

Religion or Belief  X  

Sex (was Gender)  X  

Sexual Orientation  X  

Transgender  X  

Welsh Language  X  

 

P
age 57



14 
 

 
 

Please give details about any potential negative Impacts.   How do you propose to MITIGATE these negative impacts  

    

    

 

Signed:             Designation:               Dated: 

P
age 58



15 
 

                                             EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM  

 

What are you impact assessing Service area 

  

Policy author / service lead Name of assessor and date 

  

 

 

1. What are you proposing to do? 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics in a negative way?    If YES 

please tick appropriate boxes below. 
                            

Age  Race  

Disability  Religion or Belief  

Gender reassignment  Sex  

Marriage or civil partnership  Sexual Orientation  

Pregnancy and maternity  Welsh Language  

 

 

P
age 59



16 
 

3.   Please give details of the negative impact  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Did you take any actions to mitigate your proposal?  Please give details below including any consultation or engagement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Please list the data that has been used to develop this proposal? eg Household survey data, Welsh Govt data, ONS data, 

MCC service user data, Staff personnel data etc.. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:    Designation:    Dated: 

   
The “Sustainability Challenge”  

 

 

 

P
age 60



17 
 

Name of the Officer completing “the Sustainability 
challenge”  
 

Please give a brief description of the aims proposed policy or 
service reconfiguration 
 

Name of the Division or service area 
 

Date “Challenge” form completed 
 

Aspect of sustainability 
affected 

Negative impact 
Please give details  

Neutral impact 
Please give details 

Positive Impact 
Please give details 

PEOPLE    

Ensure that more people 
have access to healthy food 

   

Improve housing quality and 
provision 

   

Reduce ill health and 
improve healthcare 
provision 

   

Promote independence    

Encourage community 
participation/action and 
voluntary work 

   

Targets socially excluded    

Help reduce crime and fear 
of crime  

   

Improve access to 
education and training 

   

Have a positive impact on 
people and places in other 
countries 

   

PLANET    

Reduce, reuse and recycle 
waste and water 

   

P
age 61



18 
 

Reduce carbon dioxide 
emissions  

   

Prevent or reduce pollution 
of the air, land and water  

   

Protect or enhance wildlife 
habitats (e.g. trees, 
hedgerows, open spaces) 

   

Protect or enhance visual 
appearance of environment  

   

PROFIT    

Protect local shops and 
services 

   

Link local production with 
local consumption 

   

Improve environmental 
awareness of local 
businesses 

   

Increase employment for 
local people 

   

Preserve and enhance local 
identity and culture 

   

Consider ethical purchasing 
issues, such as Fairtrade, 
sustainable timber (FSC 
logo) etc 

   

Increase and improve 
access to leisure, recreation 
or cultural facilities 

   

 

What are the potential negative Impacts  
 

 Ideas as to how we can look to MITIGATE the negative impacts 
(include any reasonable adjustments)  

P
age 62



19 
 

    

 

The next steps 
 If you have assessed the proposal/s as having a positive impact please give full details below 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 If you have assessed the proposal/s as having a Negative Impact could you please provide us with details of what you 

propose to do to mitigate the negative impact: 

 

 

 

Signed:                                                            Dated:    

 

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
      
 

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation 
Stephanie Hawkins 
 
Phone no: 01633 644486 
E-mail: 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal. 

Mandate B20 

The objective of the proposal is to review the current specialist provision 
Monmouthshire provides for children with special educational needs both 
within Monmouthshire and outside of the Local Authority.  We need to 
ensure that the provision provided for our children and young people is fit for 
purpose, meets the needs of our community, is robust, flexible and 
sustainable both now and in the future. 
The proposal is as described below: 
2016-2017 

 To close the Special Needs Resource Base at Deri View Primary 
School for pupils aged 4 to 11 years with moderate learning 
difficulties and social, emotional and behavioral difficulties. 

 

Name of Service 

Additional Learning Needs - CYP 

Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed 

14 September 2015 

 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together 

with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. 

Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 

The proposal will offer an inclusive education as 

close to home and the local community as 

No negative actions 

 

Future Generations Evaluation  
(includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact Assessments)  

P
age 65



Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

provides jobs possible.  

There may be some staff redundancies as the skill 

set and expertise for teaching staff may be 

different. 

 

All staff will be subject to Monmouthshire Staff 

protection of Employment Policy and will be 

supported with re-deployment. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

 

N/A 

 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental wellbeing 
is maximized and health impacts are 
understood 

Children being educated in mainstream school will 

have access to a wider peer group, which will fulfill 

Authorities ambition for greater cohesion. 

 

All extra circular activities will accessible to all 

children at the school and we will encourage as 

many as possible to participate fully. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, safe 
and well connected 

N/A  

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 

N/A  

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 

There are great opportunities for children to access 

sport, art and recreation within a fully inclusive 

mainstream setting.  

All sport, art, & recreation activities will be 

accessible to all children at the school and we will 

encourage as many as possible to participate fully. 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 

Positive: As more of our children will be educated 

in mainstream schools in Wales our children will 

 

P
age 66



Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

matter what their background or 
circumstances 

benefit from our culture where children and young 

people meet their potential via our teaching 

standards.  In our mainstream school there is a 

greater range of diversity, culture and opportunities 

to share experience. 

 

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development Principle  How does your proposal demonstrate 

you have met this principle? 

What has been done to better to meet this 
principle? 

Balancing short term need 

with long term and planning 

for the future 

This proposal will enhance the inclusion agenda 

and ensure it meets Monmouthshire and Welsh 

Government  long term strategic aims for full 

inclusion. 

We are ensuring we plan and take into account any 
changes, by being flexible and actively listening to our 
communities.  This is stage 3 of the ALN review therefore 
we already have completed extensive consultation and we 
will continue to consult during the development of stage 3. 

Working together with 

other partners to deliver 

objectives  

We’ll continue to collaborate with children’s 

services and work in line with their strategy of 

educating Monmouthshire children in 

mainstream schools within their own 

communities. 

We continue to work with our partners in Health and Social 
Care to plan the education of our most vulnerable pupils. 

Involving those with an 

interest and seeking their 

views 

In line with the statutory consultation we will 

carry out extensive engagement and statutory 

consultation. (See timetable for statutory 

consultation) 

We continue to work with schools and the community as 
well as counsellors to ensure all have a voice and are able 
to feed back to us.  We will continue to listen and shape 
our services following the consultation. 

P
age 67



Sustainable Development Principle  How does your proposal demonstrate 

you have met this principle? 

What has been done to better to meet this 
principle? 

Putting resources into 

preventing problems 

occurring or getting worse 

Monmouthshire schools have a delegated 

budget to utilize to support special needs pupils 

at ‘school action’ and ‘school action plus’ of the 

SEN Code of Practice. ( Wales), 

We will are planning to work even closer with schools and 
clusters to support schools make best use of their 
resources.  The Local Authority has a responsibility to 
support all schools with budget planning and managing 
change. 

Positively impacting on 

people, economy and 

environment and trying to 

benefit all three 

 

More children will be included in mainstream 

education. 

 
During our monitoring and evaluation it is even more 
evident that children will benefit from being educated in 
their local school.  Less children will be travelling round the 
county, this will also have social and financial benefits. 

 

P
age 68



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Age  n/a No  

Disability Monmouthshire will continue to meet the 
needs of all children with disabilities. 

n/a n/a 

Gender 

reassignment 

n/a n/a n/a 

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

n/a n/a n/a 

Race n/a n/a n/a 

Religion or Belief n/a n/a n/a 

Sex n/a n/a n/a 

Sexual Orientation n/a N/a n/a 

 

Welsh Language 

We will continue to follow our policy to teach 
Welsh in all Monmouthshire schools. 

n/a n/a 

 

P
age 69



4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and 
safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
note http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx  and for more 
on Monmouthshire’s Corporate Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx 

 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  Staff will deliver specific safeguarding duties 
and ensure the school’s systems and 
processes that need to be in place to keep 
learners safe are robust and resilient. 
School staff have the knowledge and 
understanding of statutory guidance in 
Wales which applies to all educational 
settings.  All school staff will understand 
their responsibility in regards to abuse and 
neglect. 

To our knowledge there are no negative 
impacts that would affect safeguarding. 

 
We positively promote safeguarding as 
everyone’s responsibility. 
We provide regular training, regular 
updates and audits to ensure all of our 
provision is as safe as can be. 
Systems will be regularly reviewed by 
the school and Estyn. 

Corporate Parenting  The council has a corporate duty to consider 
Looked After Children especially and 
promote their welfare (as though those 
children were their own).  

To our knowledge there are no negative 

impacts that would affect corporate 

parenting.  

We continue to review the impact of all 
our decisions that may affect Looked 
After Children.  We will highlight any 
negative impacts should they be 
evident. 

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 
 
We engaged (2014 and 2015) with children and young people, parents and staff regarding their views on how the Local Authority should continue to meet 
the needs of children with learning disabilities. 
 
We have used Estyn and School data to shape our proposal. 
. 

 

P
age 70

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 

The main positive of this proposal is that Monmouthshire will close a special needs resource base which does not meet the needs of children and young 

people within the County as is evidenced by the decline in pupils who attend the base.  Due to all the evidence gathering, information, outcome data 

and consultation the impact on this decision will be limited and the evidence suggests this solution meets the needs of Monmouthshire Children. 

 We recognise that the inclusion of this small number of pupils into mainstream may have a distracting influence in the classroom for other pupils.   We believe this 

potential impact is minimal due to the small number of children and in order to mitigate against this we will ensure that the support provided is of a specialist nature 

and that training is provided to mainstream staff the school if required. This will only potentially impact one school in Monmouthshire  ( Deri View) where there is 

significant experience and skills available to fully support this transition. There will be minimal disruption for the pupils as they are already familiar with the building, 

teaching & support staff and other pupils 

 

 

. 

 

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if 
applicable.  

 

What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  Progress  

Ensure the LA follows the 

Statutory guidelines covering 

school closure.( 2 classes SNRB) 

Within the attached timeline, 

Appendix 1 

Stephanie Hawkins Progress will be measured by 

pupil attainment against teacher 

targets. 

Ensure that the transition plan is 

carried out to minimize any 

potential disruption to all pupils 

and staff.  

Plan will be developed with the 

team once the statuary 

consultation is completed and well 

in advance of start of the transition 

process. 

Stephanie Hawkins Progress measured against the 

plan.  Review of effectiveness 

following integration.  ( in line with 

agreed outcomes) 

To ensure any identified training 

needs are delivered 

This will be developed as part of 

the transition plan and in line with 

the time scales above 

 As above.  This will be 

continuously reviewed and 

monitored in line with current 

performance management 

processes. 

P
age 71



 

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.  

 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Regularly, in line with the Service Improvement Plan 

 

P
age 72



  Page 1 of 7 
 
     

Business Change Mandate (Including Budget Mandates) Proposal Number: B23 
Title: Increase in the income generated through discretionary fees and charges by 10% 
 
All information requested must be completed on the proposed mandate to enable the Cabinet to decide whether to proceed with the proposal.  
 

Mandate Completed by  Joy Robson 

Date  22/9/15 

 

How much savings will it generate and over what period?  

£498,000 in 2016/17 
 
 

Directorate & Service Area responsible  

Various Directorates – schedule provided 
 

Mandate lead(s) 

If agreed, each service area affected will need to take the lead on reaching the target provided 
 

 
 
 

Final mandate approved by Cabinet 
 

Date:  

 
  

P
age 73



  Page 2 of 7 
 
     

 

1. Vision and Outcomes of the Mandate  
Give a business context for the mandate.  This must pick up on the vision and what the new / improved / reduced service will look like in the future 
including the anticipated experience of users.  It must also consider any impact on the Council’s key priorities and strategic outcomes. Similarly does 
it impact on service performance within the immediate service area or any impact on other services provided by the authority / any other providers.  In 
doing so, the mandate must be tested against the equality impact assessment and sustainable development impact assessment and must consider 
impact in relation to the new Future Generations Bill.   
 

What is the issue that the proposal is seeking to address? 

The issue is the need to manage with less resources without cutting services 
 

What evidence have you got that this needs to be addressed? 

During public consultation meetings in previous budget consultations, members of the public expressed a preference for charges to 
increase rather than cutting services due to the reduction in resources available to the Council. 
 
 
 

How will this proposal address this issue 

This proposal looks at all discretionary fees and charges and calculates a target 10% increase in those sources of income, either by 
increasing charges and/or increasing customers to meet the targets 
 
 

What will it look like when you have implemented the proposal 

Income targets will be met and the need cut to frontline services will have been reduced 
 
 

Expected positive impacts 

 
Income targets met and frontline services maintained 
 

Expected negative impacts 

If prices are increased this could impact on the number of people using the services. 
 
 

P
age 74



  Page 3 of 7 
 
     

2. Savings proposed  
Show how the budget mandate will make savings against the current service budget. This must cover each year implicated.  This section must also 
cover any other efficiency that will arise from the mandate. 
 

 What savings and efficiencies are expected to be achieved? 

Service area Current Budget £ Proposed Cash 
Savings £ 

Proposed non 
cash efficiencies 
– non £ 

Target year  Total Savings 
proposed 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Various services 
(see Schedule) 

£9.849 million £498,000 Need to consider 
extending direct 
debit as means of 
collecting income 
wherever 
possible 

£489k    £498,000 

         

         

3. Options 
 
Prior to the mandate being written, an options appraisal will have taken place.  Summarise here the outcome of the Options considered and detail the 
rationale on why they were disregarded. (see options appraisal guide for further information) 
 

Options Reason why Option was not progressed Decision Maker 
 

 
Income generation 
strategy outlines many 
further options to be 
considered. 

There are potentially significant lead in times for generating completely new 
sources of income, so the options in the Income Generation Strategy will be 
considered for future years of the MTFP 

 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

   

P
age 75



  Page 4 of 7 
 
     

 

 
 

  

 
4. Consultation 

 

Have you undertaken any initial consultation on the idea(s)? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

SLT/managers All September 2015 

 

Has the specific budget mandate been consulted on? 

Function Date  Details of any changes made? 

Department Management Team    

Other Service Contributing to / impacted   

Senior leadership team   

Select Committee    

Public or other stakeholders     

Cabinet (sign off to proceed)   

  

Will any further consultation be needed? 

Name Organisation/ department  Date  

   

 
 

5. Actions to deliver the mandate  
Describe the key activities that will be undertaken to deliver the mandates and the action holders. This includes any actions contributed to by other 
services. Give the timescales to complete the work. This must also factor in any business activities that will need to be done differently or cease in order 
to achieve the mandate.  
 

Action  Officer/ Service responsible Timescale 

Each service area will need to consider whether to increase prices and/or 
undertake a marketing campaign to increase customers to meet the targets 

Relevant manager for each fee 
charging service 

 

P
age 76



  Page 5 of 7 
 
     

   

   

   

6. Additional resource/ business needs  
Describe any additional finance, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposed mandate successfully. For example new funding, 
expertise e.g. marketing and knowledge etc.. 
 

Any additional investment required Where will the investment come from  Any other resource/ business need (non-
financial)  
 

Marketing capacity Central communications team  

   

   

   

 

7. Measuring performance on the mandate 
How do you intend to measure the impact of the mandate?  This could include: speed of service; quality of service; customer satisfaction; unit cost; 
overall cost. For advice on developing performance measures you can contact Policy and Performance Team, for advice on unit costs speak with your 
directorate accountant. 
 

Focus-  Budget 
/ Process / 
Staff / 
Customer 

Indicator  Actual 
2016/17 

Actual 
2017/18 

Actual 
2018/19 

Actual  
2019/20 

Target 
2016/17  

Target 
2017/18  

Target 
2018/19 

Target 
2019/20 

Customers Increase in number of fee paying customers         

Total income 
target 

Budget set with 10% increase         

          

          

P
age 77



  Page 6 of 7 
 
     

8. Key Risks and Issues 
Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the mandate, including any negative impacts identified in section 1 
that need to be accounted for. Also, set out the steps that will be taken to mitigate these.  The risks should be scored in accordance with the council’s 
policy. 
 

Barrier or Risk 
Strategic/ 

Operational 

Reason why 
identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Assessment 

Mitigating Actions 

Post 
mitigation 
risk level 

Likelihood Impact Overall 
Level 

Risk that 
customers 
reduce if prices 
increase 

operational Customer behaviour    Need to consider sensitivity of demand to price 
changes, and consider if more customers can 
be encouraged to use the service to meet the 
income target 

 

        

        

        

        

        

 

9. Assumptions 
Describe any assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 
 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

   

There is no 
impediment to 
increasing charges  

These are discretionary fees, any areas where there are limitations or other activity 
has already been proposed, these areas have been taken out of the targets 

 

   

   

   

   

 

P
age 78

http://hub/corporatedocs/Performance%20Mngmnt/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Guidance%20-%20updated%20March%202015.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/Performance%20Mngmnt/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Guidance%20-%20updated%20March%202015.docx


  Page 7 of 7 
 
     

10. Monitoring the budget mandate  
The budget mandates must be monitored through directorate budget monitoring. This will lead into corporate budget monitoring. In addition the action 
plan, performance measures and the risk assessment must be transferred into the service plans for the business area in order to monitor and 
challenge the delivery of the budget mandate, including the savings being achieved and the level of impact. 
 

11. Evaluation 
 
It is important to evaluate the impact of the mandate once it has been fully delivered to know whether it has successfully achieved what it set out to do 
and to ensure that findings can be used to inform future work. 
 

Planned Evaluation Date Who will complete the evaluation? 

  

 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Discretionary Fees and Charges 

 

     Fee  2015/16 MTFP  Additional 
   budget 2.50% 7.50% Notes 

  £k £k £k 
 

Markets 
               
441  

           
11.0  

               
33.1  

 

Cemeteries 
               
126  

             
3.2  

                 
9.5  

 

Countryside - Tintern & Caldicot 
               
103  

             
2.6  

                 
7.7  

 

TIC sales 
                 
29  

             
0.7  

                   
-    Budget mandate  

Libraries 
                 
52  

             
1.3  

                 
3.9  

 

Parks (sports clubs) 
                 
28  

             
0.7  

                 
2.1  

 

Leisure services 
           
2,481  

           
62.0  

            
186.1  

 

Shirehall 
               
122  

             
3.1  

                 
9.2  

 

Allotments 
                   
1  

             
0.0  

                 
0.1  

 

Careline 
               
173  

             
4.3  

               
13.0  

 

DFG admin fee 
                 
85  

             
2.1  

                 
6.4  

 

Outdoor education 
               
686  

           
17.2  

               
51.5  

 

Green Garden waste 
               
250  

             
6.3  

                   
-    Budget mandate   

Trade recycling 
                 
40  

             
1.0  

                 
3.0  

 

Waste Transfer notice 
                 
10  

             
0.3  

                 
0.8  

 

Highways advertising 
                 
50  

             
1.3  

                 
3.8  

 

Home to school transport 
               
831  

           
20.8  

                   
-    

Policy changes not 
proposed 

Public bus income and concessions 
                 
52  

             
1.3  

                 
3.9  

 

Network management 
                 
98  

             
2.5  

                 
7.4  

 

Traffic development 
                 
77  

             
1.9  

                 
5.8  

 

Car park income 
           
1,357  

           
33.9  

                   
-    

Car park review being 
implemented 

School meals 
               
809  

           
20.2  

               
60.7  

 Accommodation                                                
 

Page 81



14  0.4  1.1  

Legal advice for external clients 
                 
31  

             
0.8  

                   
-    Budget mandate 

Public Health 
                   
9  

             
0.2  

                 
0.7  

 

Trading Standards 
                   
6  

             
0.2  

                 
0.5  

 

Building control 
               
370  

             
9.3  

               
27.8  Can only cover costs 

Development control 
                 
96  

             
2.4  

                   
-    Budget mandate  

Community meals 
               
280  

             
7.0  

                   
-    

Reviewed several times 
already 

Land Charges 
               
138  

             
3.5  

               
10.4  Can only cover costs 

Recoupment Fees Mounton House 
           
1,004  

           
25.1  

               
50.0  

 

Total discretionary 
           
9,849  

            
246  

                
498  

 

      

Page 82



 

 
      
 

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation: 
 
Joy Robson 
 
 
Phone no: 01633 644133 
E-mail:rogerhoggins@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal: 

Mandate B23 – Discretionary Fees and Charges Review 

The proposal is to Increase the income targets from discretionary fees 

and charges by 10% 

Name of Service: 

Various services as per schedule 

 

Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed: 

22/09/2015 

 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together 

with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. 

Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

Better use of ability to charge for services to 

reduce the need to cut front line services 

Consideration may need to be given to reviewing 

concession levels 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

n/a  

Future Generations Evaluation  
( includes Equalities and Sustainability Impact Assessments)  

P
age 83



Well Being Goal  

How does the proposal contribute to this 

goal? (positive and negative) 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 

n/a  

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 

n/a  

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 

n/a  

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 

n/a  

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

n/a  

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

P
age 84



Sustainable Development 

Principle  

How does your proposal demonstrate you have 

met this principle? 

What has been done to better to meet this 
principle? 

Balancing 

short term 

need with 

long term and 

planning for 

the future 

Seeks to protect services into the future by increasing 

income rather than reducing front line services 

 

Working 

together with 

other 

partners to 

deliver 

objectives  

 During the relevant stage we will continue to work with our 
services to support them manage their resources more 
effectively and encourage them to look for opportunities to 
income generate. 

Involving 

those with an 

interest and 

seeking their 

views 

We will involve all of those services affected by this 

proposal to fully understand the impact upon their services 

and this will be reflected in this assessment following that 

stage of engagement. 

 

Putting 

resources 

into 

preventing 

problems 

occurring or getting worse 

  

Positively 

impacting on 

people, 

economy and 

environment 

and trying to benefit all three 

  

P
age 85



 

P
age 86



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Age At this stage we are unable to determine 
what the impact will be across the services.  
This document will be updated with this 
information when it is available 

The proposed increase in fees and 
charges has the capacity to have 
positive and/or negative impacts on all 
groups. 
We need to put in measures in place to 
attempt to assess the potential impact 
that any reduction may have. 

Given that all groups could be effected 
both negatively and/ or positively once 
the impacts have been established we 
will look identify how we can mitigate 
the negative impact or better contribute 
to the positive. 

Disability As above   

Gender 

reassignment 

As above   

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

As above   

Race Above   

Religion or Belief Above   

Sex Above   

Sexual Orientation Above   

 

Welsh Language 

Above   

 

P
age 87



4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and 
safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?  For more information please see the guidance 
note http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx  and for more 
on Monmouthshire’s Corporate Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx 

 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  n/a   

Corporate Parenting  n/a   

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 
 

 

P
age 88

http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Equality%20impact%20assessment%20and%20safeguarding.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx


6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 

Successful collaboration will prompt greater inter authority working across the region offering benefits to service provision to users. 

 

 

 

 

7. Actions. As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if 
applicable.  

 

What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  Progress  

    

    

    

 

8. Monitoring: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.  

 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Quarterly 

 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Budget Proposals 2016/17 for consultation - To scrutinise the budget savings proposals for 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Draft Budget Proposals 2016 17 for consultation
	Budget Mandates 16-17 Summary
	Assess the Feasibility to establish a not for profit service delivery model
	FGE B1 N4P Service Delivery model
	Mandate B20 ALN Phase 3
	Mandate B20 ALN addendum
	FGE B20 ALN phase 3
	Mandate B23 Discretionary fees income increase
	Discretionary Fees and Charges
	FGE 23 discretionary fees


